
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 


ATLANTA. GEORGIA 30300:.8960 


JAN i) 4 2012 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEljYf REQUESTED 

'VIr, M:atthew Boyd 
Richard Boyd Enterprises 
4801 Johnson Road 
Suite 10 
Coconut Creek, Floridn 33073 

Re: Richard Boyd Enterprises 

Docket No,; FlFRA-04-201l-3039(b) 


Dear Mr. Boyd: 

Enclosed is a copy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Otder (CAFO) in the above-referenced , 
matter. The original CAPO has been filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk and served on tbe parties as 
directed in Section 22.6 of the Consolidnted Rules ofPractice, 40 C.F.R.I'art 22. 

As stated in Section V of the CAFO, the assessed pelU!lty 01'$10.000 is due within 30 dnys from the 
effective date. Please ensure that the face ofyour cashier1s or certi!ied check includes the name of the 
company and the Docket Number of this case. Penalty payment questions should be directed to 
Ms, Heather Russell. either by telephone at (513) 487~2044 or by 'Written correspondence to her attention 
at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Cincinnati Accounting Operations address identified in 
the CAFO, Should you have any questions about this matter Of your compliance status in the future, 
please call 'VIs. Dawn Johnson at (404) 562-9017. 

Also enclosed is a copy of a document entitled "Notice ofSecurities and Exchange Commission 
Registrants~ Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on notice of 
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your potential duty to disclose to the Set;:urities and Exchange Commission (SEC) anyenvironmenta1 
enforcement actions taken by EPA.· 

Sincerely. 

~~gham
Acting Chlef 
Pesticides and Toxic 

Substances Branch 

Enclosures 

CC: 	 Craig T. Bryant. FL DACS 
State File No. 109-026-4105 
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UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONM.~NTAl, PROTECTION AGENCY 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 

Ill:

::x:: ..., 

In the Matter of: ) ?; '" ?i;' 

) 	 z . 
Richard Boyd Enterprises 	 ) Docket No:: FIFRA-04-2011-3iJ319(bf'" 

) r-C") "'" =r 
) 	

~'" '"::'RespondenL ) 
) CI 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

T. Nature of the Action 

This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Federal Insecticide~ 

Fongicide, and Rodenticide Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. § !361(a) (FIFRA), and pursuant 

to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil 

Penalties and the RevocationrT ermination or Suspension of Pennits (Consolidated 

Rules), 40 C.F.R. Part 22, Complainant is the Director of the Air. Pesticides and Toxks 

Management Division. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 (EPi\l 

Respondent is Richard Boyd Enterprise:,. 

2. 	 Complainant and Respondent have conierred for the purpose of settlement pw'Suanr to 

40 C.P.R. § 22.18 and desire 10 resolve this matter and settle the allegations described 

herein without a formal hearing. Therefore. without the taking of any evidence or 

testimony. the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, 

and in ",,"ordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.!3(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 

(C AFO) ",ill simultaneously commence and conclude this marter. 

Richard Boyd En1Ctprises 
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II. Preliminary Sta!ewsuts 

3, The authority to take action under Section 14(a) of FIFRA, 7 C 's,C. § 136/(a), is vested 

in the Administrator ofEPA, The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 

under FIrM to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 5· 14, datep May 11, 1994, 

4, Pursuant to 40 c'F.R. § 22,5(e)(4) the folIo",,,,, individual is authori<ed to receive 

service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Dawn Johnson 
Pesticides Section 
U,S, EPA - Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960 
(404) 562-9017, 

5, Respondent is Richard Boyd Enterprises., a Florida corporation, located at 1670 NE 20St!! 

Terrace, Miami, Florida 33179. 

6, Respondent is a "person" a, defined by Section2(s) of HERA, 7 U,S,C, § 136(s), and as 

such is subj.(,.'Ct to FIFRA and the regulations promulgated thereunder, 

[II. Specific A1legations 

7, On or about February 25. 2009, an authorized representative ofthe EPA conducted an 

inspection at Respondent's facility located at 1670 NE 2051h Terrace, Miami, Florida 

33179. 

8. During the aforementioned inspection, the "Chemiclean Red Slime Remover-' was 

identified as being sold and/or distributed by the RespondcnL The product label made 

the following claims: 

"red slime .remover" 
"red slime cyano-bacteria remover" 
"Chemi-clcan...deans unwanted tL>d slime cyano-bacteria,." 
"May be used" ,to help keep your aqunrium clean and free from algae," 
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"[f there i:.; stilI slime cyano-ba\:teria algae pre~nt in the aquarium, a second 
treatment can be done to the aquarium." 

9. 	 The "Ch~miclcan Red Slime Remover" is a pesticide as delined in Section 2(u) of 

FIFRA, 7 U.S.c. § 136(u), which includes any <ubstance or mixture of substances 

intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest, 

10. 	 A pest is defined in Section 2(1) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136(t), as any insect, rodent, 

nematode, fungus, \veed, or any other form of terrestrial or aquatic plant or animJil life or 

virus. bacteria, or other micro-organll.'Ill (except viruses; bacteria, or other 

microorganisms on or in living man or other living animals) v.mch the Administrator 

declares to be a pest under Section 25(c)(I) offIFRA, 7 UXC. § 136w(c)(l). 

11. 	 Respondent "distributes or sells" pesticides. The term "to distribute or sen" as defined by 

Section 2(gg) ofFIFRA., 7 e.S.C. § 1 36(gg), includes to distribute, sell, olfer for sale, 

hold for distribution~ hold for sale, hold for shipment, ship. deliver for shipment. or 

release for shipment 

12. 	 Pesticides that are sold and di!>tributed in the United States are required to be registered 

with the EPA. 

13. 	 At the time of the inspection, the uChemic1ean Red Slime Remover" was not registered 

as a pcstidde with EPA, 

14. 	 The inspector documented at least five (5) offers for sale and/or distribution of said 

pesticide. 

IS. 	 Under Section 12(a)(I)(A) ofFIFRA, 7 U.s,c, § 136j(a)(l)(A), it i> unl."iUI for any 

person to distribufC or sell to any person any pesticide that is not registered under 

Section 3 of FIFRA. 
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16. 	 Respondent violated Section 12(a)(1 )(A) oIT1FRA. 7 U.S.c. § 136j(a)(l )(A). on at least 

five (5) occa"iions and is therefore subject to lhe assessment ofcivil penalties under 

Section 14 ofFIFRA. 7 U.S.C. § 1361. 

17. 	 At the time of the inspection, the "Chemiclcan Red Slime Remover" product \.V'aS 

misbranded a:s that term is defined in Section 2('1) ofFIFRA. 7 V.S.c. § 136(q) in that the 

wor~ statements or infonnation required by the At."t were not prominently placed on the 

label in such a way as to make it readable or understandable, the label did not contain a 

'Warning OJ' caution statement. ingredient statement, storage and disposal statement. 

18. 	 Under Section 12(a)(I)(E) ofFlFRA. 711.S.C. § 136j(a)(l lIE). it is unlawful for any 

person to distribute or sell to any person any pesticide which is misbranded. 

19. 	 Rospondent violated Section 12(a)(1)([;) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(E), on at least 

five (5) oc,.:asions and is therefore subject to the assessment Qfcivil penalties under 

Section 14 ofFIFRA. 7 U.S.c. § 1361. 

20. 	 At the time of the inspection, Respondent produced the "Chemiclean Red Slime 

Remover" product in an estahlishment that was not registered with the Admini~1Iator of 

EP A a~ a pesticide-producing establishment. 

21. 	 Under Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(2)(L). it is unlawful to produce a 

pesticide in any State unless the establisluncnt ill registered with the Administrator of 

EPA as set forth in 3ection 7 ofFIFRA. 7 U.s.C. § 1360. 

22. 	 Respondent violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § I 36j(a)(2)(L) and is 

therefore subject to the assessment ofcivil penalties under Section 14 of FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. 

§ 1361. 
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23, Section 14(a) ofFIFRA, 7 U,S,C §136/{a), in conjunction with the Debt Collection 

Improvement A.ct of 1996, authorizes the assessment ora civil penalty. 

24, 	 Section 14(a)(4) ofFH'RA, 7 U,S,C § 136/(a)(4), requires EPA to considerthe 

appropriateness of the assessed penally to the Si7.e of business of the Respondent. the 

effect on Respondent's ability to continue in business, and the gravity of the violation. 

25, 	 Aller consideration of the fuctors set forth in Section 14(a)(4) ofFlFRA 7lJ,S,C 

§ 136/(a)(4), the EPA proposes to "'"ess a toml civil penalty ofTEN THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($10,000) llglIinst the Respondent for the ahow-described violations, Civil 

penalties under Section 14(ft) ofHFRA, 7 U,S,C, § 1 36I{a), may be assessed by 

Administrative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreement 

26, 	 For the purposes ofthls CAFO, Respondent admit.,,> the jurisdictional allegations: set forth 

above and neither admits nor denies the tactual allegations set forth above. 

27. 	 R~pondent waives its right to a hearing on the allegations contained herein and its right 

to appe-al the proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement 

28. 	 Respondent C01L"{ent<; to the assessment of the penalty proposed hy EPA and agrees to pay 

the civil penalty as i;et forth in this CAI~O. 

29. 	 Respondent certifies that as of the date of its: execution of this CAPO; it is in compliance 

with an relevant requirement<; of FIFRA. 

311 	 C01nplinnce with this C.AFO shall resolve the allegation,,; of the violations contained 

herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise alIcet any liability of Respondent to the United 

States. Other than as expressed herein, neilh","!' EPA nor Complainant waives any right to 

bring an enforcement actiun against Respondent for violation of any federal or state 
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statute, regulation or permit. to initiate an action for imminent and substantial 

endangemlent, or to pursue criminal enforcement. 

31. 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAFO. 

The parties agree that the setuement of this matter IS in the public interest and truu!hi,:; 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requiremcllts of FlFRA 

V. Final Order 

32. 	 Respondent is "",,e:;sed a civil penalty oiTEN THOUSAND DOLLARS (510,000) 

which shall be paid 'i'lithin 30 day~ from the effective dale of this CAFO. 

33. 	 Respondent ~haU remit the penalty by either a cashier's or certified check made payable 

to the "Treasurer, United States ofAmerica," and shall send the eheck via U.S. Mail to 

the following address: 

U$. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance ("{:nter 
P.O. Box 979077 

Sl. [,mis.Missouri 63197·9000. 


The cbeek shall reference on its face the name of the 

Respondent and D""k.t Nnmber of Ibis CAFO. 


34. 	 At the time of payment, Respondent shall :::end a separate copy of the check and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in accordance With this CArOl to the following 

persons at the following addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA- Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlan"" Gwrgia 30303·8960; 

Dav.'ll Johnson 
Pesticides Section 
U.S. EPA· Region 4
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303·8960; and 
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Saundi J. Wilson 
Office of Envirorunental Accountability 
u.s. EPA· Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8%0. 

35, 	 If Respondent fails to make payment as set forth above, and if such payment is not made 

within 30 days after the due date, that payment and accrued interest shall become 

immediately due and payable on the 31 gj day from such due date.ln addition, Respondent 

shall be liable Jor and shall pay administrative handling charges and late paymenl penalty 

charges as described below in the event of any !>uch failure or default. 

36. 	 Further, ifRespondent fails to make payment as set forth above, EPA may reier the debt 

to a col1ection agency. a credit reporting agency. or to the Departn1ent of justice for filing 

ofa collection action in the appropriate Gnited State,s Distric.t Court. In any such 

collection action, ule validity, amOU11L and appropriateness of the a.;;sessed penalty and of 

this CAFO shall not be subjecl to review. 

37. 	 Pursuant to 31 ES.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entitled to assess intere>t and 

penalties on debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost ofprocessing 

and handling a delinquent daim.ln accordance with 40 C,F,R. § 13.1 I (a). interest on any 

civil penalty assessed in a CAFO begins to accrue on the date that a copy of the CAFO Is 

mailed or hand--delivered to the Respondent. Ilowever. EPA \\111 not seek to recover 

interest on any amount of such civil penalty that is paid \\<ithin 30 calendar days after the 

dale on which Ruch interest begins to accmc. Inte.rest will be aqsesscd at the rate of the 

United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accondanoe with 4{l C.F.R. § 13.11(a). A 

charge win also he a89.Cssed to cover the administrative C05t~ both direct and indirect, of 
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overdue debts. In addition, a late payment penalty charge shall be applied on any 

principal amount not paid within 90 days of the due date. 

38. 	 For the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be L'!ltitled. 

and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction lor any civil penalty payment made 

pursuant to tills CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shan 

constitute a violation of this CAFO, 

39. 	 Complainant and ~pondent sha11 bear their own costs and attorney fees in this matter. 

40. 	 TIris CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

4 L Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAPO certifies that he or she is 

fully authorized by the parly represented to enter into this CAFO and hereby legally binds 

that party to it. 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
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VI. Effective Date 

42, The effcctivt" date of this CAFO shall be tl10 date on which the CA"FO is filed "'lith the 

Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGRf:ED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Respondent: Richard Boyd E:nterprises. 
nockel No.: . FIFRA 04-20U-JOJ9(b) 

B;:ffi~?~_. (Si.gru!ture) Date ~~/olll/
I J 

Name: Mr..Hh\!:'W 5, eoyD (Typed or Printed) 

_ (ryped or Printed) 

Complainant: 'V.S. Environmental Proteetion Agency 

Date: 

Beverly II. Banister, Director () 
Air. Pesticides: and TOXlcS 


Management Division 

By: .. taAd.6t~~ 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this .. 3.. ~.daY of~r:l--- 201 ~ 

~-=z<J~_ 
Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judidal Officer 
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CERTIFiCATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on tile date set out below. !filed the OIiginai and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a true and correct ropy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order In the Matter of Richard Boyd Enterprises. 

Docket Number: FIFRA-04·2011-3039(b). to the addressees listed below: 

Matthew Boyd (via Certified Mail. Return Receipt Requested) 

Richard Boyd EnterpriSe> 

4801 Johnson Road 

Suite 10 

Coconut Creek, Florida 33073 

Dawn Johnson (via EPA's internal mail) 
Pesticides Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (vin EPA's internal mail) 
Associate Regional Counsel 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

~~ili~~~ 
PaJricia A. Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 
...tlant. Fedmai Center 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562-9511 

Date: 


